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CITY OF POUGHKEEPSIE 
POUGHKEEPSIE, NEW YORK

Replacement of Two (2) Reservoir Tanks at College Hill 
RFB COP 04-16-01 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
July 1, 2016 

This addendum contains the following: 

• A complete drawing set is attached with hatched/shaded areas shown 
in gray scale. Sheets C200, C201 and C202 have been revised to show 
approximate location of major trees to be removed, additional grading 
at east section of proposed 20’-0” Asphalt Driveway, chain link fence 
relocation adjacent to arbor vitae and post and rail relocation has been 
revised to include new materials.

• Response to prebid questions and comments
• Bid proposal sheet has been further revised to include alternate for 

tree plantings.  Sheet C803 includes a tree planting detail. A rock 
excavation item has also been added to the base bid.

• A specification for chain link fence is attached.
• Hatch door detail.  This supersedes detail on C802
• Suggested Stockpile Location Plan 

Prepared By: 

City of Poughkeepsie 
Engineering Department 

62 Civic Center Plaza 
Poughkeepsie, New York 12601 



RESPONSE TO PREBID QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS
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• Can prints of the Utility Plan C 202 be provided without the asphalt
shading so that the pipe alignments are not obscured by the dark
hatch?

Revised bid set with grayscale hatching is attached. 

• Can you please verify the extent of tree/stump removals and clearing
and grubbing as applicable?

A revised Grading Plan is included in the attached bid set.  Line work 
has been added to show the limits tree/stump removals and clearing and 
grubbing. 

• There is significant excavation and removal required for tank
installation.  It is likely that rock will be encountered.  How will
payment for rock removal be handled?  If considered unclassified
excavation, what is the approximate percentage of rock to be utilized
for bid preparation?

A rock excavation item has been added to the base bid. 

• Are the underlying soils suitable for tank installation as depicted on
the drawings without the need for separate foundation support
systems, i.e., piles, etc...

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• The bid form calls out that price includes cost of licenses, permits, etc.
yet none were discussed at the pre-bid.  Will you please confirm what
permits are required, if any?

No City permits are required 

• The general notes on drawing C801 call off the requirements for
testing. Who pays for the water that will be used for flushing and
testing?

The City will allow use of water, but will require that it is metered or 
otherwise accounted for. 

• Thrust blocks are called off as restraints in the general notes.  Will a
schedule be provided to determine the size and configurations of these
restraints?  Will alternate restraint systems be considered?

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 
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• The project bid form is set up as a lump sum.  How will deviations
from the plans be handled if the improvements cannot be constructed
as depicted and specified, and paid for, if it involves additional
materials and labor than originally specified?

Unforeseen conditions will be handled in accordance with change 
procedures within general conditions specification (to be included in 
subsequent addendum). 

• Will you please indicate the area of the proposed stockpile location
for excavated materials?

A suggested Stockpile Location Plan is attached. 

• Please provide an accurate Engineer’s Estimate/Project Budget for
Contract RFB-COP-04-16-01.

It is purchasing Department’s policy that Engineer’s estimate are not 
released prior to bid opening. 

• Please confirm that the project is tax exempt.
The project is tax exempt. 

• Does the City of Poughkeepsie have a specific date upon which they
intend to Award the contract?

No specific date is set.  We antipate awarding contract within 2 weeks of 
bid opening. 

• Does the City of Poughkeepsie have a specific date upon which they
intend to issue Notice to Proceed?

No specific date is set.  

• Please confirm that the specified 9 (nine) month completion time
refers to Substantial Completion, not Final Completion.

The project duration has been extended to 12 months to substantial 
completion. 

• Please confirm that the ‘clock will be stopped’ from November 28,
2016 through April 3, 2017 for a reasonable winter shutdown.  This
shutdown period shall not count against the specified 9 month
Substantial Completion time.

No additional time will be allotted for a “winter shutdown”.  The 
successful contractor shall schedule their work appropriately.  No 
compensation will be given for cold weather concrete operation.  It is 
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the contractor’s responsibility to comply with Standard Specification for 
Cold Weather Concreting (306.1-90) if they choose to proceed in cold 
weather conditions. 

• Section 13000 WIRE OR STAND WOUND PRESTRESSED
CONCRETE TANK - Paragraph 1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE D.
Design Criteria 6.  Please revise the eighth sentence in this paragraph
from “The dome thickness shall be no less than 4 inches.” to “The
dome thickness shall be no less than 4 inches for precast domes and 3
inches for cast-in-place domes.”

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Section 13000 WIRE OR STAND WOUND PRESTRESSED
CONCRETE TANK - Paragraphs 2.9 EXTERIOR COATINGS &
3.12 DECORATIVE COATINGS - Paragraphs 2.9 and 3.12 specify
the decorative coating system to include one coat of cementitious
based damp-proofing product such as “Tamoseal” with AKKRO-7T”
or equal and one coat of a non-cementitious, high build, 100% acrylic
resin polymer such as “Tammscoat Smooth” or equal on the exterior
dome surface.  For above grade exterior wall surfaces, two coats of
“Tammscoat Smooth” or equal are specified.  Because Preload
generally constructs the dome roof by the cast-in-place method, rather
than the pre-cast method, we do not require a cementitious damp-
proofing product on the dome exterior [please refer to the Ten State
Standard].  We request that you approve our standard decorative
coating system which consists of a two-coat finish of 100% acrylic
such as Tammscoat Smooth over the entire exposed tank exterior
(wall and dome).

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Section 13000 WIRE OR STAND WOUND PRESTRESSED
CONCRETE TANK - Paragraphs 2.10 APPURTENANCES - This
paragraph makes no mention of an interior ladder and none is shown
on Drawing C 804.  Please confirm that no interior ladder is required.

No interior Ladder is required. 

• Section 13000 WIRE OR STAND WOUND PRESTRESSED
CONCRETE TANK - Paragraphs 2.10 APPURTENANCES - This
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paragraph makes no mention of a permanent wall manway and none is 
shown on Drawing C 804.  Please confirm that no permanent wall 
manway is required. Note:  it is unusual to specify no interior ladder 
AND no permanent wall manway. 

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Section 13000 WIRE OR STAND WOUND PRESTRESSED
CONCRETE TANK - Paragraphs 2.10 APPURTENANCES - This
paragraph makes no mention of an exterior ladder, however, an
exterior ladder is shown and detailed on Drawing C 804.  Please
confirm that an exterior ladder is, in fact, required.

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Drawing C 804 – PLAN view details two 18” Outlet Pipes [at 9
o’clock and 12 o’clock] plus an 8” Drain Pipe [between 10 o’clock
and 11 o’clock].  Please confirm that all these pipe penetrations are, in
fact, required.

Yes 

• The hatch door has three different specs depending on where you
look. The spec sheet has a JD-4AL (60”x60”) with 300 psf loading,
the plan view shows a 42”x60” opening in the roof, and the section
view labels it as a JD-2AL H20 load (48”x48”). Do you know which
is correct?

Provide Model J-5ALH20 by Bilco.  See attached Detail 

• In order to ensure the best pricing to the city for the project, will you
please consider an extension of time for the bid opening and
associated submission of questions?

The bid opening will be extended to July 20, 2016. 

• Specs call for Mueller H-615 MJ Sleeve, also calling for epoxy
coating and AIS complaint. Mueller H-615 sleeves are not AIS
Complaint nor are they epoxy coated.
Please clarify if we are to stick with Mueller’s normal sleeve or go
with an AIS complaint epoxy coated sleeve.

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 



Page 6 of 8 

• The plans call for Arborvitae Trees, but do not specify a variety.
Please specify what type of Arborvitae Trees are preferred.

Provide Emerald Green variety 

• Overflow Basins- The plan sheet C202 refers to them as 4' x 4', but no
Rim & Invert elevations are provided.   Plan sheet C804 show a cross
section of the tank overflows but does not provide Rims & Inverts.
Also, it does not describe the type or size grate required. Please advise
on Rim & Inverts and Type or Size Grate required.

Invert elevation is shown on C804. Rim elevation is 305. 

• No bid bond forms were provided within the bid documents.  Please
confirm our standard bid bond forms will be acceptable for this
project. (Please see attached).

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• The project completion time is listed as 9 months. With the timing of
the project we suggest 12 months for final completion.

The project completion time has been extended to 12 months. 

• Please confirm if any retainage is to be held on the progress payments
for this project.

3% of each requisition will be retained. 

• This project is stated as excise and federal transportation tax exempt.
Please clarify if the project is also state, local, and county tax exempt.

The project is state, local, and county tax exempt. 

• Appendix A, EFC Clauses and Requirements, This section references
the EPA 6100 forms. These forms haves been suspended by the EPA
as noted in the attached notice. Please clarify what is to be included
with the bid relative to the MBE/WBE forms.

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Please provide a specification for the proposed chain link fence that is
to be installed.

A specification for chain link fence is attached. 
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• Specification Section 13000, page 17, article 2.10.A.6. states the Tank 
Contractor shall coordinate with other Contractor(s) and the City 
Engineer regarding the placement and installation of embedded items 
and other anchorage devices required for the securing of new 
Telemetry equipment. Please provide the anticipated telemetry 
equipment that will be installed on the tank. 

The equipment will not be specified prior to bid opening. 
 

• Specification Section 13000, page 20, article 3.4.D. references if 
subgrade is deemed unsuitable for the foundation removal of the 
unsuitable material and replacement with compacted drainage stone 
subbase material shall be measured separately and paid for by the unit 
price indicated in the bid. However there is no unit price pay item for 
the removal of unsuitable subgrade soil and replacement with 
compacted drainage stone subbase on the bid form. Please confirm 
that if unsuitable soils are encountered the removal and replacement 
of these soils will be handled via change order or add a unit price pay 
item to the bid form. 

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 
 

• Specification section 13000, page 7, article 1.2.D.3.l.ii.5 and 
1.2.D.3.l.iii.4 indicates “R” values that are based on a tank with an 
“unanchored and unconstrained flexible base”.  Please confirm it will 
be acceptable to use “R” values of 4.5 and 3.25 for AWWA D110-04 
and ASCE 7 respectively if the tank base connection is an “anchored 
flexible base”.  This tank design will require base restraint cables and 
the currently specified R values are based on a tank that is designed 
without base restraint cables.  The R values as specified will 
significantly increase the amount of base restraint cables required on 
this project.  Allowing us to use the appropriate R values based on the 
wall/floor connection will reduce the number of cables. 

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 
 

• Drawing No. C804, detail 1/S3 (18” inlet pipe) calls out an MJ x MJ 
compact 45 degree bend above the tank finish floor.  Please confirm if 
a flanged 45 degree bend would be acceptable alternative to the MJ 
fitting. 

Yes, this will be an acceptable alternative. 
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• Please provide the centerline elevations for the under slab piping at
the two reservoirs.

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Drawing No. C804, detail 1/S4 (Overflow) shows the catch basin with
an invert elevation of 298.00 which is 2 feet below the tank
foundation.  Please confirm the catch basin structure can be relocated
away from the tanks in order to prevent undermining the tank
foundation during catch basin installation.  Rip rap or a reinforced
splash pad can be provided to divert the overflow discharge from the
wall penetration to the catch basin.

We are researching this item and an answer will be forthcoming in a 
subsequent addendum. 

• Please remove shading on the utility plan so we can see the layout of
the vaults.

A revised drawing set is included with hatching (shading) in grey scale. 



REVISED PLAN SET
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REVISED BPS



Company:

Bid Proposal for: College Hill Reservoir Construction

Base Bid:
Item 
No. Item

Est. 
Qty.  Unit  Unit Price Amount

1 Two Tank 5.0 MG Reservoir 1 LS -$                     -$                             
This shall include all work and materials required to complete the contract: all 
labor, materials, applicable taxes, tools and equipment for setting up general 
plant, including storage areas, facilities required by State Laws and City 
Ordinances; the general mobilization of equipment and temporary facilities 
required for completion of the work shown on the Drawings,described in the 
specifications,  or ordered by the Engineer; and, cost of licenses, permits, etc. 
required by governing ordinances for construction projects.

2 Rock Excavation 20 CY -$                     -$                             
As required and ordered by engineer.  Quantities must be verified by Owner's 
representative on a daily basis if needed

 $                         -   

Alternate Items:
Item Item

 
Qty.  Unit  Unit Price Amount

ALT1 Test Pit 40 CY -$                     -$                             
At locations as ordered by Engineer.  Includes topsoil and seed restoration.

ALT2 6" DIP Watermain Relocation 20 LF -$                     -$                             
Provide and isntall new 6" DIP at locations as ordered by Engineer.  Includes  
excataviton, pipe bedding , fittings, transition couplings,  backfill and top soil 
and seed restoration.

ALT3 1 1/2" Asphalt overlay 100 TON -$                     -$                             

At locations as ordered by Engineer.  Includes tack coat.

ALT4 Full Depth Asphalt replacement 500 TON -$                     -$                             
At locations as ordered by Engineer.  Includes removal of existing asphalt, 
compaction of existing subase, and repalcemetn to exsiting thickness.  

ALT5 Provide and install Red Maple (Acer rubrum) 18 EA -$                     -$                             

Provide and install 3" caliper red mpale per Tree Planting Detail

 $                         -   

*The City reserves the right to remove any alternate items. 

Signature:

Proposal Form (Revised 6/30/2016)

Total: Base Bid

Bid #04-16-01 

Total: Base Bid Plus Alternates
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SECTION 02821 – SITE FENCES AND GATES 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Condi-
tions and Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to work of this section.

1.2 SUMMARY OF WORK

A. Furnish and install all framework, fabric, posts and accessories for chain link and vinyl privacy
fencing.

1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The fence installer shall supply three references for projects involving the installation of commer-
cial quality fencing, including name and telephone number of person for each reference.

B. Installation: ANSI/ASTM F567.

C. Layout Personnel: Layout of fence line shall be performed by qualified surveyors or representa-
tives of the fence supplier.

D. All fence and gate materials and installation shall be furnished and installed by a single firm.

1.4 DEFINITIONS

A. Corner Posts: Posts located at a change in horizontal alignment.

B. End Posts: Posts located at the beginning or end of a length of fence.

C. Gateposts: Posts that support the weight of a gate.  Gateposts may function also as terminal posts
but generally are sized differently.

D. Line Posts: Posts between terminal posts.

E. Pull Posts: Posts located within a length of fence at certain distances, and at changes in vertical
alignment, to facilitate stretching of fabric.

F. Terminal Posts: Posts set where fence fabric terminates, and between which the fabric is
stretched; a term that includes end, corner, and pull posts.

1.5 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit manufacture's catalog cuts and product data. Indicate post sizes, and materials; protective
coatings (if required); fabric materials, dimensions, sizes, and characteristics; and accessories.

B. Submit color charts showing available fabric vinyl dip colors (if vinyl fabric required).

1.6 WARRANTY/GUARANTEE

A. Provide Owner with written, unlimited five (5) year warranty on all fencing installations, agree-
ing to replace or repair any damage to any product installed as part of the work of this Section, if
the product shows defects, early wear, malfunction, or other deterioration not caused by mis-
treatment or normal usage.

B. Warranty period to commence on the date of substantial completion of the entire project, not nec-
essarily the date of substantial completion of the work of this Section.
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C. For vinyl-dip green or other color fence fabric coating, provide additional warranty on finish 
coating for a period of ten (10) years, commencing on the same date as other warranties covered 
by the work of this Section commence. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 CHAIN LINK MATERIALS 

A. Framework: Type I Round Post; Schedule 40 steel pipe, standard weight, one piece, without 
joints, galvanized. 

B. Fabric: ASTM A392 Type I, galvanized. 

2.2 CHAIN LINK FENCE COMPONENTS 

A. Fence 
1. Line Posts: 2” O.D. for fabric height less than 6 feet, 2 ½ “ for fabric height greater than 

or equal to 6 feet. 
2. Corner, terminal and gateposts: 2 ½” O.D. for fabric height less than 6 feet, 3“ for fabric 

height greater than or equal to 6 feet. 
3. Top, mid, bottom rail, brace rail, and gate bracing: 1 5/8" O.D. plain end, sleeve coupled 

steel pipe. 
4. Swing Gate frame: 1 5/8" O.D. steel pipe for fittings and truss rod fabrication. 
5. Fabric: 2-inch diamond mesh steel wire, interwoven, top and bottom knuckled selvage, 

see Contract Drawings for gage. 
6. Caps: Cast steel or malleable iron, galvanized, sized to post dimension, set screw 

retained. 
7. Fittings: Sleeves, bands, slips, rail ends, tension bars, fasteners and fittings: steel, 

galvanized. 
8. Swing Gate hardware: Center gate stop and drop road, two 180-degree gate hinges per 

leaf and hardware for padlock. 

2.3 CHAIN LINK FINISHES - ALL MEMBERS, FABRIC, AND ACCESSORIES 

A. Galvanized as per ANSI/ASTM A123, 2-ounce/square foot, 600-gram coating. 

B. If vinyl fabric is specified on the Contract Drawings, fabric and framework shall be as same as 
described above except also provide fence framework in manufacturer's shop-applied vinyl coat-
ing. Use a 9-gauge core with a thermally fusion bonded finish. Color to be selected by Owner. 

2.4 VINYL PRIVACY FENCING 

A. Six-foot tall vinyl privacy fence with a 7/8” x 6” tongue and groove picket, minimum of .055” 
thick vinyl.  Provide all necessary posts and hardware from a single fence manufacturer.   The 
bottom rail shall be an aluminum "I" channel. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 EXAMINATION 

A. Verify that line of fence has been properly identified. 

B. Verify that encroaching fences, structures, or other items of neighbors within the property line of 
this parcel have been removed by others prior to the start of the work of this Section. Notify 
Owner and Owner’s Representative in writing immediately if encroaching elements of neighbors 
have not been removed. Removal of neighbors' encroaching property is not included in the scope 
of work of the General Construction Contract. 

C. Verify that proper grade has been established. 



CITY OF POUGHKEEPSIE TWO 2.5 MG WATER STORAGE TANKS 
12422.03   SITE FENCES AND GATES                                          02821-3 

D. Verify location of underground utilities and structures, whether new, existing to remain, existing
to be removed, or existing to be relocated or altered.

E. Begin fence construction only after adequate clearance on both sides of fence is available.

3.2 CHAIN LINK FENCE INSTALLATION

A. Fence
1. Install framework, fabric, accessories, and gates in accordance with Contract Drawings.

For athletic fields, fabric shall be placed on the playfield side of framing.  No bolts, ties
or braces shall protrude towards playfield side.

2. Provide fence heights as shown on the plans.
3. Space line posts at intervals not exceeding 10'. Locate terminal posts at the beginning and

end of each continuous length of fence, at abrupt changes in line or grade, and
additionally at intervals not to exceed 500 feet, or as otherwise shown on the drawings.
Install posts in proper alignment.

4. Set all posts plumb in concrete footings with top of footing flush with grade. Slope top of
concrete for water runoff. Footing depth below finish grade as shown on details. Securely
brace posts in proper position until concrete has cured at least 3 days above 60 degrees F.
Bottom of concrete post anchors shall rest on undisturbed earth or compacted subgrade.
Excavation shall be free of loose materials when placing concrete.

5. Provide top rail through line post tops and splice with 6" long rail sleeves.
6. Stretch fabric between terminal posts or at intervals of 100' maximum, whichever is less.
7. Position bottom of fabric 1" above finished grade or as shown on Contract Drawings.
8. Fasten fabric to top rail and braces with wire ties, maximum 18" on centers.
9. Fasten fabric to line posts with wire ties, maximum 12” on centers.
10. Install swing gates with fabric to match fence. Install per leaf: three hinges, latch, catches,

drop bolt, and torsion spring retainer.
11. Neatly trim all ties so as to prevent sharp edges from protruding.

B. Gate Installation
1. Install gates in accordance with manufacturer's instructions, plumb, level, and secure for

full opening without interference.
2. Gates shall operate freely without binding or dragging and shall be easily operable by

hand.
3. Install gatekeeper and plunger bar latch on gates; lock gates and turn over keys to Owner

or fasten lock chain securely to gate.

3.3 VINYL PRIVACY FENCING 

A. Install vinyl fencing in accordance with manufacturer specifications..

3.4 ADJUST AND CLEAN

A. Adjust hardware for smooth operation and lubricate where necessary.

3.5 PROTECTION

A. Protect completed work from damage. Repair or replace any damaged work. Replace items where
the finish has been scratched or removed down to bare metal.

END OF SECTION 02821 
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